
City of Rockaway Beach 
Planning Commission Meeting Agenda        
 

Date:   September 8th, 2022  

Time:   4:30 P.M. 

Location:  Rockaway Beach City Hall, 276 HWY 101 - Civic Facility  

 
JOIN ZOOM MEETING 

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/5137179369?pwd=S01QbzlIWTh6QnlHbmo2RXpYNTZ1dz09  
MEETING ID: 513 717 9369  PASSCODE: 013664 +12532158782  US (TACOMA) 

 

CALL TO ORDER – Bill Hassell, Chair 

 

ROLL CALL 
Chair:  Bill Hassell   Councilors: Bill Hassell, Pat Olson, Zandra Umholtz, Sandra Johnson 

     Georgeanne Zedrick, Kristina Woida, and Stephanie Winchester 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

1. July 21st, 2022 -  

 

CITIZEN CONCERNS, COORESPONDENCE AND COMMENTS 

 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

1. Falcon Subdivision continuation from July Meeting (SD 22-01) 

 

OLD BUSINESS 

1. Appointment of Planning Commission Secretary 

 

NEW BUSINESS  

 

 

PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENTS & CONCERNS 

 

 

STAFF COMMENTS AND CONCERNS 

 

 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/5137179369?pwd=S01QbzlIWTh6QnlHbmo2RXpYNTZ1dz09


8/11/2022 11:45:48 AM 

Page 1 
8/11/2022 11:45:48 AM 

  

City Planning Commission Meeting 
Date: July 21st, 2022 

Time: 6:00 PM 

Location: Rockaway Beach City Hall 

 
JOIN ZOOM MEETING 
HTTPS://US06WEB.ZOOM.US/J/5137179369?PWD=S01QBZLIWTH6QNLHBMO2RXPYNTZ1DZ09  

MEETING ID: 513 717 9369  PASSCODE: 013664 +12532158782  US (TACOMA) 

 

CALL TO ORDER AND APPROVAL OF AGENDA FOR CITY PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 

 

A) Roll Call Commission Members: Bill Hassell, Zandra Umholtz, Pat Olson, Georgeanne Zedrick, 

Sandra Johnson, Kristina Woida and Stephanie Winchester (New – Position 2).  Scott Fregonese – 

City Planner  
Position #2 – Stephanie Winchester: Present 

Position #3 - Pat Olson: Present 

Position #7 - Georgeanne Zedrick: Present 

Position #5 - Bill Hassell: Present 

Position #1 - Zandra Umholtz: Present 

Position #4 - Sandra Johnson: Present 

Position #6 - Kristina Woida: Present 

 

B) Approval of Minutes - 6/16/22 - Hassell asked requested a motion. Umholtz moved for 

approval – Johnson 2nd – all in favor.  
Position #1 - Zandra Umholtz: Motion 

Position #4 - Sandra Johnson: 2nd 

Position #2 - Stephanie Winchester: Approve 

Position #3 - Pat Olson: Approve 

Position #7 - Georgeanne Zedrick: Approve 

Position #5 - Bill Hassell: Approve 

Position #1 - Zandra Umholtz: Approve  

Position #4 - Sandra Johnson: Approve 

Position #6 - Kristina Woida: Approve 

 

C) Citizen Concerns, Correspondence and Comments 
Phyllis Engelking (909 1st Ave – Rockaway) asked where meeting minutes could be located – Hassell 

explained they are all available on the city’s website.  

 

Lisa Finkle (2212 The Strand – Rockaway) & Pat Smith – (121 NW 22nd Ave – Rockway) – spoke on 

neighboring issues about parking and road concerns.  

 

D) Public Hearings 
 

Public Hearing Falcon Subdivision (S 22-01) - Hassell opened the public hearing and read 

the opening statement. 

 

Hassell asked if any Planning Commissioners had bias to declare and for their and site visit impressions.  

• Winchester recursed herself based on being a neighboring property owner.  

https://us06web.zoom.us/J/5137179369?PWD=S01QBZLIWTH6QNLHBMO2RXPYNTZ1DZ09
avca:8a95cb21-fe0d-4abd-8460-bdf2d9388195@00:00:56
avca:8a95cb21-fe0d-4abd-8460-bdf2d9388195@00:00:56
avca:8a95cb21-fe0d-4abd-8460-bdf2d9388195@00:00:56
avca:8a95cb21-fe0d-4abd-8460-bdf2d9388195@00:00:56
avca:8a95cb21-fe0d-4abd-8460-bdf2d9388195@00:00:56
avca:8a95cb21-fe0d-4abd-8460-bdf2d9388195@00:00:56
avca:8a95cb21-fe0d-4abd-8460-bdf2d9388195@00:00:56
avca:8a95cb21-fe0d-4abd-8460-bdf2d9388195@00:00:56
avca:8a95cb21-fe0d-4abd-8460-bdf2d9388195@00:01:49
avca:8a95cb21-fe0d-4abd-8460-bdf2d9388195@00:01:49
avca:8a95cb21-fe0d-4abd-8460-bdf2d9388195@00:01:49
avca:8a95cb21-fe0d-4abd-8460-bdf2d9388195@00:01:49
avca:8a95cb21-fe0d-4abd-8460-bdf2d9388195@00:01:49
avca:8a95cb21-fe0d-4abd-8460-bdf2d9388195@00:01:49
avca:8a95cb21-fe0d-4abd-8460-bdf2d9388195@00:01:49
avca:8a95cb21-fe0d-4abd-8460-bdf2d9388195@00:01:49
avca:8a95cb21-fe0d-4abd-8460-bdf2d9388195@00:01:49
avca:8a95cb21-fe0d-4abd-8460-bdf2d9388195@00:01:49


8/11/2022 11:45:48 AM 

Page 2 
8/11/2022 11:45:48 AM 

• Johnson and Zedrick performed a site visit, and both had questions. 

• Fregonese reminded the commissioners to state their impressions and that there would be a 

opportunity to ask questions later.  

 

Fregonese presented the staff report via power point. He stated that due to the passing of the City 

Engineer, the engineer’s report was incomplete. Fregonese suggested extending the public hearing until 

the next regularly scheduled planning commission meeting. The planning commission members had 

questions for Fregonese regarding wetlands, letters in opposition and public notification.  

 

Applicants - Fred George spoke on behalf of the application and to the history and the previous plans for 

the property. He explained why he chose to apply for a subdivision. The planning commission asked 

questions of the applicant regarding selling the lots, water lines, sewer lines, street parking and wetlands.  

 

Hassell requested testimony in favor or opposition of the proposal – none.  

 

Public Comment - Phyllis Engelking (909 1st Ave – Rockaway) spoke about clear cutting and burning. 

This was not the property in question and owner of that property had the appropriate permit.  

 

Hassell asked staff for final comments. Fregonese requested that the planning commission keep the public 

hearing open until the next meeting.  

8/11/2022 11:45:48 AM 

Umholtz made a motion to keep the hearing open for Subdivision 22-01 through the planning 

common meeting in August, Woida 2nd. All in favor.  
Position #1 - Zandra Umholtz: Motion 

Position #4 - Sandra Johnson: 2nd 

Position #2 - Stephanie Winchester: Approve 

Position #3 - Pat Olson: Approve 

Position #7 - Georgeanne Zedrick: Approve 

Position #5 - Bill Hassell: Approve 

Position #1 - Zandra Umholtz: Approve  

Position #4 - Sandra Johnson: Approve 

Position #6 - Kristina Woida: Approve 
 

Public Hearing Variance (V22-02) – O’Day 
Hassell opened the public hearing and read the opening statement. He asked if any Planning 

Commissioners had bias to declare and for their and site visit impressions. 

 

Zedrick, Umholtz and Johnson all performed a site visit and met with the owner Laura O’Day. 

 

Fregonese presented the staff report via power point. Planning Commissioners asked questions about 

wetlands, the original plan, current site plan and setbacks. 

 

The applicant Robert O’Day (2726 SE 89th, Portland OR 97266) spoke on behalf of his request.  Planning 

Commissioners asked questions to the applicant about original plan, reasons for the modifications. 

 

Hassell asked for testimony in favor or opposition of the proposal – none received.  

 

Planning Commissioners had further discussions about the applicant and to staff about vegetation 

coverage, setbacks, the criteria and potential conditions of approval.  

 

Johnson made a motion to approve the application for variance setback on the front of the house 

and deny the variance in the back. Zedrick 2nd. All in favor.  
Position #4 - Sandra Johnson: Motion 

avca:8a95cb21-fe0d-4abd-8460-bdf2d9388195@00:01:49
avca:8a95cb21-fe0d-4abd-8460-bdf2d9388195@00:01:49
avca:8a95cb21-fe0d-4abd-8460-bdf2d9388195@00:01:49
avca:8a95cb21-fe0d-4abd-8460-bdf2d9388195@00:01:49
avca:8a95cb21-fe0d-4abd-8460-bdf2d9388195@00:01:49
avca:8a95cb21-fe0d-4abd-8460-bdf2d9388195@00:01:49
avca:8a95cb21-fe0d-4abd-8460-bdf2d9388195@00:01:49
avca:8a95cb21-fe0d-4abd-8460-bdf2d9388195@00:01:49
avca:8a95cb21-fe0d-4abd-8460-bdf2d9388195@00:01:49
avca:8a95cb21-fe0d-4abd-8460-bdf2d9388195@00:01:49


8/11/2022 11:45:48 AM 

Page 3 
8/11/2022 11:45:48 AM 

Position #7 - Georgeanne Zedrick: 2nd 

Position #2 - Stephanie Winchester: Approve 

Position #3 - Pat Olson: Approve 

Position #7 - Georgeanne Zedrick: Approve 

Position #5 - Bill Hassell: Approve 

Position #1 - Zandra Umholtz: Approve  

Position #4 - Sandra Johnson: Approve 

Position #6 - Kristina Woida: Approve 

 

E) Old Business - none 
Johnson asked about the planning commission Rules and Procedures from the previous meeting – 

Fregonese noted that the copy was handed out.  

 

F) New Business 
Chair and Vice Chair Appointment – Commissioners submitted written ballots for the two open positions.  

Ballot results showed Hassel for Planning Commission Chair, and Umholtz as Vice Chair. Johnson made 

a motion to nominate Hassell as chair. with Woida – 2nd.  Woida motioned for Umholtz as Vice chair and 

Zedrick 2nd. All in Favor both motions.  
Position #4 - Sandra Johnson: Motion 

Position #7 - Georgeanne Zedrick: 2nd 

Position #2 - Stephanie Winchester: Approve 

Position #3 - Pat Olson: Approve 

Position #7 - Georgeanne Zedrick: Approve 

Position #5 - Bill Hassell: Approve 

Position #1 - Zandra Umholtz: Approve  

Position #4 - Sandra Johnson : Approve 

Position #6 - Kristina Woida: Approve 

 

G) Workshops - none 

       

H) Planning Commission Comments & Concerns  
Commissioners discussed the role of secretary. 
 

Hassell asked to include date stamps for the documents and discussed parking issues at the Old Growth 

Cedar Preserve. 

8/11/2022 11:45:48 AM 

I) Staff Comments & Concerns  
Fregonese has a conflict of the next meeting. Commission moved the next meeting to 4:30 pm on 8/18/22.  

 

J) Adjournment at 8:15 p.m.  
Olson made a motion to adjourn, Johnson 2nd – All in favor.  
Position #3 – Pat Olson: Motion 

Position #4 – Sandra Johnson: 2nd 

Position #2 - Stephanie Winchester: Approve 

Position #3 - Pat Olson: Approve 

Position #7 - Georgeanne Zedrick: Approve 

Position #5 - Bill Hassell: Approve 

Position #1 - Zandra Umholtz: Approve  

Position #4 - Sandra Johnson: Approve 

Position #6 - Kristina Woida: Approve 

 

 



8/11/2022 11:45:48 AM 

Page 4 
8/11/2022 11:45:48 AM 

 

 

Minutes approved on this  ___ day of August 2022. 

 

 

 

______________________________________ 

 Bill Hassell, Planning Commission President 

 

 

 

 

 

_______________________________________ 

Jenny Kettner, Planning Technician 



 
 

STAFF REPORT (Updated 8/11/22)     CASE FILE: #SD-22-01 

         DATE FILED: 6/06/22 

         HEARING DATE: 7/21/22 (Extended to 8/18/22)  

         8/18/22 Cancelled –  9/8/22. 

         

CITY OF ROCKAWAY BEACH 

PLANNING COMMISSION ACTION 

 

APPLICANT: Fred E. & Eileen A George 

 

REQUEST: The applicants are requesting tentative subdivision plan approval for Application SD 22-01.  The lot is located 
at 346 Falcon St. designed as 2N1032 CA 600.  It is located in the R-3 Zone and is approx. 1 acre at (43,748 sq. ft.) The 
applicant is requesting to subdivide this lot into 5 individual lots, with one lot at 0.28 acres (12,196 sq. ft.)  with the 
remaining lots at 0.18 acres (7,840 sq. ft.).  
 

A. REPORT OF FACTS 

1.) PROPERTY LOCATION:  The vacant property is located at 346 Falcon St and is at the end of Falcon St. off 

north of 3rd Ave in Rockaway Beach and is further identified on Tillamook County Assessor’s Map #2N1032 

CA tax lot 600.   

2.) LOT SIZE: approximately 43,748 square feet and 1.00 acre.  

3.) ZONING DESIGNATION: R-3 (Lower Density Residential Zone). The minimum lot size requirement for that 

zoning is 5,000 sq. ft. The minimum lot width is 50 ft, the applicant will be required to have all lots be a 

minimum of 50 feet in width. 4 of the lots are currently 45 feet.  

4.) SURROUNDING LAND USE: The subject property is adjacent to Rockaway City Park on the west side. Directly 

to the north and west are large lots both of which are located in Rockaway Beach’s Local Wetland Inventory.  

(Source Department of State Lands Approved Local Wetlands Inventory 1993). The lots to the south are 

vacant and were recently portioned to 3 lots in 2021.   

5.) EXISTING STRUCTURES: The lot is currently vacant.  

6.) UTILITIES: The following utilities will be required to serve the 5 individual lots.  

a. Sewer: City of Rockaway Beach 

b. Water: City of Rockaway Beach 

c. Electricity: Tillamook County P.U.D. 

7.) DEVELOPMENT CONSTRAINTS:  The north portion of the lot is located in our State LWI. The applicants have 

worked with the Department of State Lands and identified buildable area for the entire lot. (see map).  

 

B. EVALUATION OF THE REQUEST 

1.) GENERAL DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPOSAL: The applicants are requesting to subdivide their 1-acre lot into a 

5 individual lots.  

2.) BACKGROUND:  Vacant Land  

3.) AGENCY COMMENTS:  

a. 5 letters in opposition to the subdivision.  

4.) ORDINANCE STANDARDS: The following ordinance standards apply to this request. 

 

 



 
 

Rockaway Beach Subdivision and Land Partition, Article 13 

 

Section 2 Purpose 

The purpose of this ordinance is to enact subdivision and land partitioning regulations for the  

City which will provide for better living conditions within new land divisions; assure necessary streets, open 

space, utilities and public areas and provide for their installation or improvement; enhance and secure property 

values in land divisions and adjacent land; simplify and make land descriptions more certain and in general to 

promote the health, safety, convenience and general welfare of the people of Rockaway Beach.  Although the 

purpose section of the variance provisions is not intended to be used as a criterion or standard to evaluate the 

request, it should be considered as a guide in the evaluation of the criteria as outlined below. 

 

C. CONDITIONS 

a. Update lot width to a minimum of 50 feet each per City Zoning Requirements for R-3. 

b. Listed requirements by the City Engineer (HBH Consulting Engineers) per report dated August 9th, 2022.  

c. Fire Chief will require a fire turn around placed at the end of Falcon St. in the public right of way.  

 

D. STAFF SUMMARY 

 

The request for the tentative subdivision plan meets all planning and zoning requirements in terms of lot size and 

configuration. If the applicant can meet all the requirements of the city engineer pertaining to infrastructure 

upgrades staff supports, the approval of the tentative subdivision plan. 

 

E. CONCLUSION 

 

If, after hearing the evidence at the hearing, the planning commission agrees that the applicant meets the 

requirements of the tentative subdivision plan, the preliminary subdivision plat will be approved with list of 

conditions to submit all required plans for the final subdivision plat.  Within one (1) year after approval of the 

preliminary plat, or such extension as may have been granted by the City, the subdivider shall cause the proposed 

subdivision, or any part thereof to be surveyed and a plat thereof prepared in conformance with the preliminary plat 

as approved or conditionally approved. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Preliminary Plat Proposal  



 

 
 

 

 



 
Image below identifies the Oregon Department of State Lands Local Wetland Inventory (LWI) 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
Image below identifies the state-stamped wetland delineation map issued 4/9/2020  

 



 

 

August 9, 2022 
 
Dan Emerson, Public Works Director 
PO Box 5 
276 Hwy 101 S. 
Rockaway Beach, OR 97136 
 
Re: George Subdivision – 346 N Falcon St. 
 
Dear Dan,  
  
This letter serves as a response to the subdivision application submitted by Eileen and Fred 
George. We have completed our review of the information provided, which included a letter 
to the City requesting the review of the proposed subdivision, a wetland delineation letter 
from DEQ, and a preliminary plat map. Without engineered drawings submitted, it is difficult 
to provide direct comment as the applicant’s plans are not known at this time. We would 
offer the following general comments and guidelines: 
 
The following conditions should be read into the staff report for the subdivision.  
 

1) All sanitary sewer, water, storm, and street design shall meet or exceed the City of 
Rockaway Beach Design Standards and Standard Details. Construction activities shall 
meet or exceed the City of Rockaway Beach Technical Standards.  

2) All sanitary sewer, water, storm and street design, and construction shall meet or 
exceed the City of Rockaway Beach Technical Standards. 

3) Engineered plans are required to be submitted to the City for this proposed 
subdivision prior to plat approval. Drawings shall be stamped by a licensed 
professional engineer registered in the State of Oregon prior to receiving City 
approval. 

4) The applicant shall submit an acceptable storm drainage report prior to final design of 
the storm system. 

5) The applicant shall obtain a 1200-C permit for the erosion control plan from DEQ if 
ground disturbance exceeds 1 acre. 

6) All sanitary sewer design shall be approved by DEQ. The water system does not 
require approval by the Oregon Health Division. 

7) The following off-site improvements shall be provided by the applicant/owner: 

a) Street and Storm Drainage Design 

a. The existing gravel road does not meet City standards for residential 
streets. Reference Table A of Section 3 of the Street and Storm 
Drainage Design Standards for the minimum road requirements. The 
road shall consist of two ten (10’) foot paved travel lanes, two-foot 
(2’) gravel shoulders, and a four foot (4’) wide swale. Shoulder and 
swale shall be constructed on the east side of the road for the entire 
length of the property frontage along N Falcon St. Swale and shoulder 
will not be required on the west side of the road. The road 



City of Rockaway Beach  
George Subdivision – 1st Review 
August 9, 2022 
Page 2 of 4 
 

constructed shall be suitable for two-way traffic. Comply with 
Standard Detail RB-02 at a minimum. End of road shall have a 
turnaround for vehicles, including fire trucks. Minimum turnaround 
requirements shall be per Fire Chief and Fire Department.  

b. Per 3.01.02A of the Street & Storm Drainage Design Standards, the 
acceptable structural sections for the various street classifications 
without obtaining soil tests are shown in the Standard Drawings. 
Additional base rock will be required where compressible soils or 
wetlands are known to exist as shown on the standard Sections 

c. Due to nearby wetland and presence of silty loam and silty clay loam, 
there is a reasonable suspicion of compressible soils. A geotechnical 
report for this project will be required. Provide geotechnical report 
with road base recommendations to the City. 

d. Driveways and approaches shall conform to City of Rockaway Beach 
Standard Details and the Street & Storm Drainage Design Standards 
outlined in Section 3.02. Curb openings for driveways will not be 
required for this street; however, driveways shall approach at right 
angles to the centerline of the street. Driveway openings shall be at 
least 5 ft from the side property line extended. No two residential 
driveway openings shall be less than 20 feet apart when constructed 
on the same lot. Driveway openings on corner lots shall be located a 
minimum of 5 feet from the ends of curb radius returns. All driveway 
aprons shall be paved a minimum of 20 feet from the road surface 
back into the driveway. 

e. On roadways where driveway culverts are necessary, the minimum 
size shall be 12-inch double wall corrugated HDPE culvert pipe. 

f. Applicant shall provide and install street barricades and street name 
signs and posts necessary as required by the street construction 
specifications. 

g. Provide Storm Sewer system meeting City Design Standards. 

h. Public drainage improvements shall be sized to handle the 25-year 
frequency periods for various durations of storms contained in the 
Oregon Department of Transportation Hydraulic Manual. 
Additionally, they will need to be sized to handle storm water 
discharged into the public ROW from the subdivision. Size storm 
sewer improvements based on storm drainage report and Oregon 
Hydraulic Manual as well as the City Design Standards. Provide report 
and calculations to the City Engineer. If storm sewer is directed to the 
existing culvert, a new ditch inlet will be required at the junction. All 
storm sewer improvements shall meet the City of Rockaway Beach 
Design Standards. 



City of Rockaway Beach  
George Subdivision – 1st Review 
August 9, 2022 
Page 3 of 4 
 

i. Submit stormwater report to City for review with engineered 
construction drawings for all required improvements within the 
ROW. Existing culvert on N Falcon St may need to be lowered or 
upsized based on report submitted. 

b) Water Distribution System 

a. Per Section 3.01 of the City of Rockaway Beach’s Water System 
Design Standards, “the City of Rockaway Beach has adopted the 
Uniform Fire Code; water line size and fire hydrant placement should 
be placed by the standards and recommendations described within 
the latest version” along with the requirements of the Water Design 
Standards. 

b. Per the Oregon Fire Code, Appendix C, Table C102.1, the maximum 
distance from any point on the street or road frontage to a hydrant is 
250 ft. Not all proposed lots are less than 250 ft from a fire hydrant. 
Install hydrants in accordance with Table C102.1. 

c. Per City of Rockaway Beach Water System Design Standards, Section 
3.01, 6” water mains may be used when not forming part of the fire 
protection grid. Additionally, no fire hydrants are to be supplied from 
the existing 6” water main in N Falcon St. The existing water main on 
N Falcon St is to be upsized to an 8” main. A dead end water main 
shall be installed with a blow-off assembly. 

d. Water main in the public Right-of-Way shall be PVC C900 with 
restrained fittings and thrust blocks in accordance with the design 
standards and standard details. 

e. Service laterals shall be installed in accordance with City Design 
Standards and Details as well as in accordance with AAWWA C800 
and the Uniform Plumbing Code.  

c) Sanitary Sewer System 

a. Drawings shall be provided showing proposed sanitary sewer 
connections to the existing system. Any lift or pump stations that may 
be needed for a complete design shall be provided to the City for 
review and shall be approved by DEQ. 

b. Sewer shall be located within 5 ft of the centerline of the new road. 

c. Per Sanitary Sewer Design Standards Section 3.12, construction of 
private building sewers shall meet the same requirements of the 
public sewer and shall meet the design requirements listed in the City 
of Rockaway Beach Sanitary Sewer Design Standards and Standard 
Details. 

d. The existing sewer terminates approximately 35 ft from the southern 
property line on N Falcon St. The sewer will need to be extended 
from the existing manhole to the southernmost property line. A 



City of Rockaway Beach  
George Subdivision – 1st Review 
August 9, 2022 
Page 4 of 4 
 

cleanout shall be installed at the end of the main. The line extension 
should meet the Sanitary Sewer Design Standards and Standard 
Details. Connections to manholes shall be standard joint or flexible 
coupling. Install tracer wire with line extension. Modify manhole to 
provide flow channel for extended line. Submit engineered drawings 
to the City for review. Drawings shall be stamped by a licensed 
professional engineer registered in the State of Oregon prior to 
receiving City approval. 

 

8) The following general conditions must also be met: 

a. Complete the attached plan review checklist and return to the City Engineer 
prior to City approval of the subdivision. 

b. Applicant to obtain City of Rockaway Beach Right-of-Way permit prior to 
proceeding with any work within the City of Rockaway Beach Right-of-Way. 

c. Provide inlet and outlet elevations at existing manhole prior to proceeding 
with construction. 

d. All open cut trenches within City ROW to be backfilled with ¾”-0” crushed 
rock. 

e. Submit complete engineered drawings and specifications in compliance with 
the plan review checklist to the City Engineer for review and comment. 

f. Upon addressing above items and any additional comments in regard to 
submitted Engineered Drawings and Specifications, please schedule a pre-
construction meeting with the City Engineer. 

 

Should you have any questions, please contact me. 

 
Sincerely,  
HBH Consulting Engineers, Inc. 
 
 
Robert Henry, PE 
Assistant City Engineer 
 
  

 



 

 

 

276 Hwy 101 S. | PO Box 5 | Rockaway Beach OR 97136 

Ph (503) 374-1752 | Fax (503) 355-8221 

Email cityhall@corb.us 

 

City of Rockaway Beach - Public Works Department 

CITY OF ROCKAWAY BEACH 
ENGINEERING PLAN REVIEW CHECKLIST 

FOR PUBLIC WORKS CONSTRUCTION 
(revised 01/2020) 

 
Project No. ___________________________________ Project Name ______________________________________ 
Review Date #1 _____________________ 

Review Date #2 _____________________ 

Review Date #3 _____________________ 

Review Date #4 _____________________ 

Review Date #5 _____________________________ 
 
 
LEGEND:         X = INCLUDED           blank = INCOMPLETE        NA = NOT APPLICABLE 

 

Disclaimer: This checklist does not preclude the designer from knowing all of the standards. This 

checklist is to be used as a guide, not a replacement for: 

- Street and Storm Drainage Design Standards 

- Water Distribution System Design Standards 

- Sanitary Sewer System Design Standards 

- Pavement Cut Standards 

- Grading and Erosion Control Design Standards  

- City Technical Specifications 

- City Standard Construction Details 

- Any other applicable City or General Engineering Design Standards 

 

The following sheets should be included in most engineering plan sets: 

 

_____ COVER SHEET 

_____ GENERAL CONSTRUCTION NOTES  

_____ EXISTING CONDITIONS PLAN 

_____ DEMOLITION PLAN 

_____ SITE DIMENSIONAL PLAN 

_____ GRADING PLAN 

_____ EROSION & SEDIMENT CONTROL PLAN 

_____ COMPOSITE (OVERALL) UTILITY PLAN 

_____ STREET PLAN AND PROFILE 

_____ STORM PLAN AND PROFILE 

_____ SANITARY PLAN AND PROFILE 

_____ WATER PLAN AND PROFILE 



City of Rockaway Beach Engineering Plan Review Checklist (01/2020) 

 
  Page 2 

_____ STREET LIGHTING PLAN (if required) 

_____ SIGNING AND STRIPING PLAN (if required) 

_____ SIGNAL PLAN (if required) 

_____ LANDSCAPE PLAN (* This is reviewed by the Planner) 

_____ CONSTRUCTION DETAILS 

 

PLAN PREPARATION 

 

  Prepared and stamped by a Professional Civil Engineer (PE) registered in Oregon.  Verify 

current registration date. 

  Plan Sheet size - 24" x 36" with margins. 

  Standard engineering scale, i.e. 1” = 20’, 1” = 30’, 1” = 40’, etc. 

 

COVER SHEET 

 

  Sheet Index  

  Legend of symbols, existing and proposed 

  Vicinity Map 

  Title Block  

  North Arrow 

  Reference Benchmark for Vertical and Horizontal Control. Must reference a NAVD88 

datum unless another is approved by the City Engineer. 

  Assessor’s Map & Tax Lot Numbers for project site 

  Temporary Benchmark, including description. 

  Project Name, placed at top center of the sheet 

  As-Built Number, placed on the bottom right corner of the sheet 

  Utility Contact Information 

  Owner/Developer and Civil Engineer Contact Information 

 

EXISTING CONDITIONS PLAN 

  Existing Grade One-Foot Contours within 50 feet of the site 

  Existing Structures and finished floor elevation of existing buildings 

  Existing Driveways/Access Points  

  Right-of-Way boundaries and widths  

  Names of existing adjacent streets 

  Property Dimensions and Bearings 

  All existing impervious areas 



City of Rockaway Beach Engineering Plan Review Checklist (01/2020) 

 
  Page 3 

  Any existing easements 

  All existing trees, planters and landscaping 

  Existing fences, with fencing type labeled 

  All existing utilities 

  Existing utility poles, pedestals and boxes 

  Existing retaining walls 

  Site Water Resources (NROD, Floodplain, wetlands, etc) 

 

DEMOLITION PLAN 

  Clearly show what items are being removed from the subject property 

  Clearly show what items will be demolished offsite within the public right-of-way 

 

SITE DIMENSIONAL PLAN 

  New roadway dimensions which includes sidewalk, parkway, etc. 

  Proposed roadway dimensions to existing public right-of-way 

  Sight Triangle at intersections 

  Proposed Property / Right-of-way Dedication 

  Number all lots to be created 

  Any existing and proposed easements 

  Names of existing adjacent streets 

  Any existing structures to remain 

  Location of any retaining walls or fences 

  Names of proposed new streets 

  Property Dimensions and Bearings 

  Table showing total site area, existing pervious area, existing impervious area compared 

with proposed pervious area and proposed impervious area 

  All proposed trees 

  Proposed stormwater facilities 

  Table of Number of Parking spaces and ADA Spaces 

  ADA Accessible Route defined 

  Pavement Section 

  Location and description of existing survey monuments (and note if protection or 

replacement will be needed) 

 

 



City of Rockaway Beach Engineering Plan Review Checklist (01/2020) 

 
  Page 4 

GRADING PLAN 

  Existing Grade One-Foot Contours within 50 feet of the site 

  Proposed Grade Contours (at 1-foot intervals) onsite 

  Spot Grades/Elevations where needed 

  Finished Floor Elevations of proposed house footprints 

  Designation of slopes (i.e. 3:1, 4:1) 

  All excavated slopes no steeper than 2:1, unless approved otherwise 

  Fill slopes shall not be constructed on natural slopes steeper than 2:1 

  Benched ground where natural slopes are steeper than 4:1 and the height is greater than 5 

feet, at a minimum of 10 feet wide, unless approved otherwise 

  Drainage Arrows to show intent of proposed grading 

  Overland Flow Arrows to show intent of stormwater flow beyond 10-year storm 

  Stormwater Facility 

  Proposed and Existing Swales 

  Site Water Resources (NROD, Floodplain, wetlands, etc) 

  Locations of Disturbed Areas shown by hatch, and quantification of area (i.e. 1.23 acres 

disturbed) 

  Quantities of Cut/Fill 

  Locations of Drainage Structures 

  Standard Grading Notes 

 

EROSION & SEDIMENT CONTROL PLAN 

  Flow Arrows showing drainage direction 

  Silt Fence 

  Inlet Protection 

  Stockpile Locations 

  Concrete Washout 

  Sedimentation Basin (if needed) 

  Seeded Areas, or other erosion control measures 

  Gravel Construction Entrance 

 

COMPOSITE (OVERALL) UTILITY PLAN 

  Site Geometric Plan 

  Storm sewer, sanitary sewer, and water main lines and structures 

  Stormwater Facilities 



City of Rockaway Beach Engineering Plan Review Checklist (01/2020) 

 
  Page 5 

  Proposed Street Light locations 

  Existing trees to remain 

  Proposed Street Trees 

  Proposed Utility Easements (P.U.E. and any others) 

  Proposed Structures (Buildings, Fences, Walls, etc) 

  Proposed Driveways (if known) 

  Proposed Mailboxes (if known) 

 

STREET PLAN AND PROFILE* 

  Driveway width and location 

  Sidewalk width and location 

  Travel Lane (Road) width and location 

  Bike lane width and location 

  Parking lane width and location 

  Curb type and location 

  Detail and spot elevations for each curb return at street intersections and around cul-de-

sacs 

  Pavement structural section 

  Right of Way lines (proposed and existing) 

  Approved temporary fire truck turnaround if a dead-end street with a future extension 

  Access control for a future extension (also shown on the plat) 

  Dimension of spacing of driveways and/or proposed streets 

  Accessways if required 

  Intersection angle of 90 degrees (no less than 80 degrees) 

  Dead-end street or cul-de-sac = sufficient turnaround for emergency vehicles 

  Vertical Curve information 

  Cross Slope of Road (crown to edge)  

  Profile of proposed road versus existing grade 

*Storm drain profile can be part of street profile 

 

STORM PLAN AND PROFILE 

  Stationing, manhole numbers beginning at downstream end 

  Size, type of pipe, length, slope of pipe  

_______ Rim elevation, inverts, existing/proposed finished grades 

_______ Backfill designation 



City of Rockaway Beach Engineering Plan Review Checklist (01/2020) 

 
  Page 6 

_______ Typical Section of all pipeline trenches and ditches 

_______ Utility crossings (Field locate / pothole to provide detailed information) 

  Match lines (with sheet number reference)  

_______ Design calculations for capacity and adequacy of downstream facilities 

  Pipe System Requirements 

    PVC and HDPE require 3 feet minimum cover 

    May use Class 52 Ductile Iron for 1 ft cover 

    Minimum 12” in diameter 

    Maximum pipe length between manholes = 400 feet 

    Minimum separation = 6” vertical, 3 ft horizontal from other utilities 

    Minimum pipe slope = 0.5% 

    Manhole shall be at all main pipe junctions  

    Outfall shall have energy dissipaters 

 

SANITARY SEWER PLAN AND PROFILE (Section 2.01 of City Sanitary Sewer System Design 

Standards) 

  Manhole Stationing, numbers, dimensional control. 

  Size, type of pipe, length, slope of pipe  

_______ Rim elevation, inverts, existing/proposed finished grades 

_______ Backfill designation 

_______ Utility crossings (Field locate / pothole to provide detailed information) 

  Match lines (with sheet number reference)  

  Service Locations with size, material, depth at property line, station   

  Location of existing water courses, stream and railroad crossings, culverts and storm 

drains crossing the alignment within 500 feet of proposed and future extension    

  Location of existing 100-year floodplain    

  Location of wells, water main valves, pump stations, fire hydrants and blow offs within a 

100-foot radius of proposed and future extension     

 

SANITARY SEWER SYSTEM CAPACITY (Section 3.01) 

 

  Design Calculations (if required). 

 

PIPE MATERIAL 

 

  All public sanitary sewers shall be constructed with PVC 3034 pipe 

  Class 50 ductile iron pipe shall be used when determined by the City Engineer 



City of Rockaway Beach Engineering Plan Review Checklist (01/2020) 

 
  Page 7 

 

PIPE SIZE (Section 3.02) 

 

  8" minimum. 

  Exception, 6" minimum if non-extendable, less than 250 ft. in length. 

 

MINIMUM GRADE (Section 3.03) 

 

  Meets standard minimum. 

  _____ 6” = 0.60% 

  _____ 8” = 0.40% 

  Meets preferred minimum for non-extendable sewer, shall be used for last 400 feet 

  _____ 6” = 1.00% 

  _____ 8” = 0.75% 

 

ELEVATION OFFSET AT MANHOLES 

 

  0.10’ drop for less than 45° deflection angle. 

  0.20’ drop for greater than 45° deflection angle. 

  Maximum off-set one-foot (1') for conflicts. 

  Drop connection, if more than 1’ drop. 

 

ANCHOR WALLS  (Section 3.04) 

 

  20% or greater slope, anchor walls are required. 

  If velocity exceeds 15 Feet Per Second, use Ductile Iron pipe 

 

MINIMUM DEPTH  (Section 3.05) 

 

  Service lateral - 4 feet at property line. 

  Main and trunk sewer/within roadway - 6 feet. 

  Main and trunk sewer/within easements - 3 feet. 

  If flat topography where existing sewers are shallow (5 feet or less), minimum cover is 3 

feet 

______  When sewer has cover of 3 feet or less, ductile iron pipe must be used 

 

 

 



City of Rockaway Beach Engineering Plan Review Checklist (01/2020) 

 
  Page 8 

LOCATION  (Section 3.06) 

 

  10-foot horizontal separation with waterlines. 

  18-inch vertical clearance with water lines. 

  Waterline crossings at or near 90 degrees. 

  12-inch vertical separation with storm (exception: Ductile Iron pipe to be used). 

  Easements shown on plan - Minimum width 15 feet (less than 24" diameter). 

  Easements shown on plan - Minimum width 20 feet (more than 24" diameter). 

  Easement description/sketch/documents or shown on plat as appropriate. 

  Vehicular access to manholes. 

  Well/spring/domestic water source separation (50' minimum) 

 

ALIGNMENT  (Section 3.07) 

 

  Straight and uniform slope. 

 

MANHOLES  (Section 3.10) 

 

  Manhole spacing – max. 500 feet. 

  Manhole locations (see Section 3.10.03) 

 

LATERAL SEWER (SERVICE LATERALS) AND PRIVATE COLLECTOR SYSTEMS 

 

  Table of all service laterals, with the following information: 

• Lateral station 

• Distance from downstream manhole to service tee 

• Length of service lateral 

• Depth of lateral at property line 

  5-foot separation between manholes and tees 

  Located 90° to main, except at a cul-de-sac 

  Connections not at manholes, except cul-de-sac (Case-by-case). 

  Two-way cleanout at property line. 

  Minimum cover 4 feet at property line. 

  Minimum size 4 inches for building sewer. 

  Minimum size 6 inches for multi-family/commercial. 

  Minimum slope 2% 



City of Rockaway Beach Engineering Plan Review Checklist (01/2020) 

 
  Page 9 

  Residential building sewer/crossing private property not allowed unless approved by City 

Engineer with easement. 

 

WATER PLAN AND PROFILE  (Section 2.01 of City Water Distribution System Design Standards) 

  Valve Stationing 

  Fire Hydrants 

  Air Release Valves 

  Size, type of pipe  

_______ Backfill designation 

_______ Utility crossings (Field locate/pothole to provide detailed information) 

  Match lines (with sheet number reference).  

 

SYSTEM CAPACITY  (Section 3.01) 

 

  Adequate Fire Flow 

  Min./Max. Working Pressure 40 - 100 psi, Normal, 60 psi 

  Provide for Adjacent Property and Maximum Development.   

(extend across street frontage and through easements, if required) 

  Maximum Velocity - 10 fps for average demand plus fire flow. 

  20 psi residual pressure under calculated fire flow conditions. 

  Minimum Fire Flow = 1,000 gpm 

  Oversizing per Master Plan considerations 

 

PIPE MATERIALS 

 

  Ductile Iron - minimum thickness = Class 50 

_______ PVC – minimum pressure rating = 200 psi 

 

MAIN SIZE (Section 3.01) 

 

  8 standard minimum.  Exceptions as approved by the City Engineer. 

  6” allowed if not part of Fire Protection Grid 

 

MINIMUM DEPTH  (Section 3.02) 

 

  36” Standard Minimum Cover 

  Request for less than Standard shall be approved by the City Engineer. 

 



City of Rockaway Beach Engineering Plan Review Checklist (01/2020) 

 
  Page 10 

LOCATION  (Section 3.02) 

 

  Mains located 7' from property line, on South and West sides of street centerline 

  Water/Sanitary Separation (10' Horiz.) (18" Vert.), OAR 333-61-050 

  Water/Other Utility Separation (10' Preferred, 3 Minimum Horiz.) (6” Vert.) 

  Easements (10’ Minimum width) 

 

VALVES  (Section 3.03) 

 

  Gate Valves 8" or Less 

  Butterfly Valves 10 or Larger 

  Air Release Valves at High Points 

  Spacing Maximum - 500' - 800' for Distribution Mains 

  Spacing Maximum - 1,300' - 2,000' for Transmission Mains 

  Located at Tee or Cross fitting as near as possible 

  At Hazardous Crossing, Valved Each Side 

  At Terminus of Phased Construction  

 

FIRE HYDRANTS (Section 3.04) 

 

  Spacing, Residential = 500 feet (When Measured Along Road) 

  Spacing, High Value = 300 feet (as Determined by Fire Department) 

  No further than 250 feet from any dwelling, business, garage, or building 

  Maximum 200-foot Centerline Distance to Cul de-sac Radius Point 

  Main Size for Dead End Mains = 8" Minimum (Avoid long dead-end leads, if possible)  

  5-foot Separation with Utility Poles/Guy Wires 

 

SERVICE LINES  (Section 3.05) 

 

  Size 

  Service Location 

  Meter Location 

  Corporation Stop at Main 

  Angle Meter Stop at Meter 

  8” Minimum Separation for Services in Same Trench 

 

 



City of Rockaway Beach Engineering Plan Review Checklist (01/2020) 

 
  Page 11 

METERS  (Section 3.05.02) 

 

  Install by City (In Construction Notes) 

  Located in Right-of-way or Easement 

  Same Size as Service Line, Unless Supporting Calculations Supplied and Approved 

  3 and Larger - Special Location, Bypass and Vault Requirements  

 

BACKFLOW PREVENTION  (Section 3.05.02) 

 

  OHA-Approved Double-Check Valve Provided on Customer Side of Meter 

 

STREET LIGHTING PLAN (if required) 

  Street Lighting Design Provided. To be reviewed by TPUD. 

  Photometric Plan Provided. To be reviewed by TPUD. 

  Shall follow TPUD Approved Street Lighting Equipment for New Installations for 

Outdoor Lighting Services. 

 

SIGNING AND STRIPING PLAN (if required) 

  Location of any signs 

  Size of signs 

  Location and Type of Striping (lane lines, turn lanes, crosswalks, bike lanes, stop bars, 

etc.) 

  Note if striping shall be painted or thermoplastic 

  Note location and type of any bollards, barricades, or end markers 

 

LANDSCAPE PLAN (* This is reviewed by the Planner) 

  Provided (see City Planning Department for requirements and approval) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



City of Rockaway Beach Engineering Plan Review Checklist (01/2020) 

 
  Page 12 

TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS/CONSTRUCTION DETAILS 

*Designer should provide the most recent details found at : http://corb.us/vertical/sites/%7B087A747C-

D4DD-4132-9CE8-8372D0E33390%7D/uploads/Technical_specifications(1).pdf  

 

These details should be provided on all plan sheets with City Public Improvements where applicable. 

Consultant Details or other agency details should only be provided when no City detail exists or applies. 

 

MISCELLANEOUS 

*Other plans may be required, including, but not limited to: 

- Phasing Plan 

- Traffic Control Plan 

 

Prior to Construction, applicant must: 

• Hold a Pre-Construction Meeting with the City Public Works Department and all stakeholders 

• Provide a Project Cost Estimate approved by City Engineer or Public Works Director 

• Secure a Right-of-Way Permit, and all other necessary permits 

http://corb.us/vertical/sites/%7B087A747C-D4DD-4132-9CE8-8372D0E33390%7D/uploads/Technical_specifications(1).pdf
http://corb.us/vertical/sites/%7B087A747C-D4DD-4132-9CE8-8372D0E33390%7D/uploads/Technical_specifications(1).pdf





















	PC Meeting Agenda 9_8_22
	PC Meeting Packet 9_8_22
	PC Meeting Agenda 9_8_22
	SubDivision 22-01 George Staff Report updated
	PC Meeting Packet 8_18_22
	PC MeetingMinutes 7_21_22
	SUB DIV_GEORGE-F
	2022-08-09 George Subdivision Engineer Report
	2022-08-09 George Subdivision
	Rockaway Beach PW  plan_review_checklist

	Letters received
	SD 01 Application





